# Ingham County Land Bank Main Conference Room 3024 Turner St, Lansing, Michigan March 16, 2020 – 4:30 p.m.

## CALL TO ORDER

Chairperson Schertzing called the March 16, 2020 Regular Meeting of the Ingham County Land Bank to order at 4:34 p.m. in the main conference room at the Land Bank, 3024 Turner Street, Lansing.

Members Present: Schertzing, Grebner, Slaughter Members Absent: Crenshaw, Frischman Others Present: Tim Perrone, Roxanne Case, David Burns, Brent Forsberg and Jeff Deehan from Reo Town Holding

## **APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES**

COMMISSIONER GREBNER MOVED TO APPROVE AS AMENDED. COMMISSIONER SLAUGHTER SUPPORTED THE MOTION. THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. MINUTES OF JANUARY 23, 2020 STAND AS AMENDED.

#### **ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA**

None

## LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT

None - Tricia Phelps - Taste the Local Difference rescheduled due to Coronavirus.

- 1. Commercial
  - A. Sale Status report brief discussion.
  - B. Resolution to Authorize the Sale of (112) E Malcolm X to Reo Town Holdings LLC

#### Adopted as amended March 16, 2020 Agenda item #1.B.

# INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK FAST TRACK AUTHORITY

### RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF 112 E MALCOLM X STREET, LANSING TO REO TOWN HOLDING LLC

### **RESOLUTION 20-05**

WHEREAS, the Land Bank Fast Track Act, 2003 PA 258, being MCL 124.751 *et seq*., ("the Act") establishes the State Land Bank Fast Track Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Act allows a foreclosing governmental unit, such as the Ingham County Treasurer, to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the State Land Bank Fast Track Authority providing for the exercise of the powers, duties, functions, and responsibilities of an authority under the Act, and for the creation of a County Land Bank Fast Track Authority (the "Authority") to exercise those functions; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Treasurer, with Ingham County Board of Commissioners approval, has entered into such an intergovernmental agreement under the Act; and established the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority (the "Land Bank") in 2005; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority has policies, procedures and administrative rules regarding the disposition of commercial property which require board approval;

WHEREAS, REO Town Holding LLC would like to purchase the vacant property located at (112) E Malcolm X St, (#33-01-01-21-203-003) for a sale price of \$50,000 with the intent to construct a hotel or possibly a mixed commercial apartment project. REO Town Holding has substantial investment into environmental testing and mitigation already; and

WHEREAS, Ingham County Brownfield Plan funds will be used to complete further environmental cleanup required. A Memorandum of Understanding will be executed between Ingham County Brownfield Authority and Ingham County Land Bank; and

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Land Bank authorizes its Chairperson or Executive Director to negotiate and execute the transaction of this parcel to REO Town Holding LLC for the total rate of \$50,000 plus closing costs.

FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED, property conveyances shall contain a reverter clause prohibiting the property's use of any sexually oriented business as defined by law, medical marijuana business or dispensary, or casino.

COMMISSIONER SLAUGHTER MOVED TO APPROVE. COMMISSIONER GREBNER SUPPORTED. THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

Yeas: Slaughter, Schertzing, Grebner. Nays: None.

Absent: Crenshaw, Frischman

#### MARCH 16, 2020 REGULAR MEETING

Brent Forsberg of Reo Town Holding spoke about the project. He stated that the goal is to have a hotel set on the site, unless a hotel company does not oblige, then 2<sup>nd</sup> option is an apartment complex. He stated that they are still planning to have a dock system on the river eventually, and that they will incorporate the old printer building lot, possibly with some apartments built.

- 1. Residential
  - A. List of Properties Sold & In Progress, January-February 2020

Director Case stated that due to the Coronavirus, Cinnaire is working from home and we are holding off on closings, unless it is specifically needed. Chairperson Schertzing stated that the Land Bank held an open house at the property at 4501 Wainwright Ave and that the house is nice. Director Case stated that the first offer fell through, and we are on to the 2<sup>nd</sup> offer currently.

B. Resolution to Authorize the Sale of 2 Vacant Lot Parcels at 1542-1546 High St to Capital Area Housing Partnership

#### Adopted as amended March 16, 2020 Agenda item #2.B.

## INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK FAST TRACK AUTHORITY

#### RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE SALE OF TWO (2) VACANT PARCELS ON HIGH ST (1542-1546), LANSING, TO CAPITAL AREA HOUSING PARTNERSHIP

#### **RESOLUTION 20-06**

WHEREAS, the Land Bank Fast Track Act, 2003 PA 258, being MCL 124.751 *et seq*., ("the Act") establishes the State Land Bank Fast Track Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Act allows a foreclosing governmental unit, such as the Ingham County Treasurer, to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the State Land Bank Fast Track Authority providing for the exercise of the powers, duties, functions, and responsibilities of an authority under the Act, and for the creation of a County Land Bank Fast Track Authority (the "Authority") to exercise those functions; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Treasurer, with Ingham County Board of Commissioners approval, has entered into such an intergovernmental agreement under the Act; and established the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority (the "Land Bank") in 2005; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority (the "Land Bank"), in its Priorities, Policies, and Procedures document, indicates in Section 7.B.2. that sale of three (3) or more properties to the same buyer within a twelve month period must be approved by the Land Bank Board; and

WHEREAS, the Land Bank purchased the residential improved property at High St (1542), Lansing (# 33-01-01-10-154-041) in 2011 and acquired the residential improved property at High St (1546), Lansing (# 33-01-01-10-154-031) in 2009 through local unit rejection; and subsequently demolished both blighted structures with federal Neighborhood Stabilization Program 2 (NSP2) monies; and

WHEREAS, Capital Area Housing Partnership (CAHP) would like to purchase the two (2) properties to build affordable housing, using City of Lansing HOME funds. CAHP has identified the Northtown area as a neighborhood of focus for Spring/Summer 2020. They intend to build up to 5 single-family houses and will be partnering with Cristo Rey Community Center, Lansing Financial Empowerment Center, BWL, Consumers, and various other City departments during this construction period, including the Land Bank with these properties.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Land Bank authorizes its Chairperson or Executive Director to negotiate and execute the transaction of these two (2) parcels to Capital Area Housing Partnership for the total market rate of \$9,200 plus closing costs.

FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED, property conveyances shall contain a reverter clause prohibiting the property's use of any sexually oriented business as defined by law, medical marijuana business or dispensary, or casino.

COMMISSIONER SLAUGHTER MOVED TO APPROVE. COMMISSIONER GREBNER SUPPORTED. THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

Yeas: Slaughter, Schertzing, Grebner. Nays: None.

Absent: Crenshaw, Frischman

Director Case stated that these 2 High Street properties are in addition to a resolution that was approved in January; they weren't processed quick enough to include in January's resolution. These are 2 nice lots that will be built on, by Capital Area Housing Partnership, and will definitely improve the neighborhood, and it is recommended to sell to CAHP.

C. Demolitions 2019

Brief discussion about the demolitions. Director Case stated that we are using some CDBG funds for demolishing 9 properties, and the Treasurer is funding another 6 demolitions. Commissioner Slaughter asked for clarification of the stats and data. Director Case explained that we have razed 4 properties thus far, so the actuals aren't fully completed yet. Chairperson Schertzing asked about the justification data. Director Case explained that part of CDBG requirements is to estimate the cost of rehab and compare to current sale prices. Unfortunately, rehab costs are double the cost of estimated sales. Chairperson Schertzing stated that back in stabilization days, we put large costs into renovations and that's one of the reasons why we have a 20-year homeowner deed restriction. Director Case reminded the Board that one of the major factors of demolition is due to poor foundation, not just the framing of the house.

D. Demolitions 2020

Director Case stated that this is the upcoming potential list of properties that is tentatively scheduled for fall 2020. Chairperson Schertzing asked the reasoning behind the division of CDBG and Treasurer demolitions. Director Case stated that the properties listed under the Treasurer, are either in a non-CDBG targeted area or in an eligible historic district.

#### 2. Administration

A. Receive Accounts Payable, January-February 2020

AP has been received, accepted, and on file.

Director Case stated that the Land Bank has hired Ms. Robin Wright temporarily to help us through accounts payable, and that is working out well. Ms. Jill Rhode who we hired last summer to help us through the bank reconciliations, is staying on and working a couple days a week to help us through the financials. The Land Bank is stable, and we are ready for our audit.

C. Position Grade Levels breakdown

Director Case stated that this is a breakdown per the 2020 budget that we passed in December. Director Case connected with Sue Graham, Ingham County's Human Resources and her staff to compared positions at the county with the positions at the Land Bank. Chairperson Schertzing clarified that we do not have all the positions currently at the Land Bank, and most likely will not in the future, unless things change drastically, which with the current world economy, it could. Commissioner Grebner clarified that steps may not need to be listed as annual, depending. Chairperson Schertzing reminded the Board that Land Bank financials are ratcheting back, and Land Bank will need to be mindful of cost structure going forward.

D. Communication from Executive Director

Director Case recommended an increase for the Land Bank Garden Coordinator, who hasn't had a salary increase in 5 years but was on an improvement plan in early 2019 that has been completed. The increase is in the budget, and the recommendation is that the increase goes retroactive to his anniversary date in December 2019. Commissioner Grebner asked Tim Perrone to confirm if there was any concern about going back to the previous calendar budget year. Tim Perrone confirm that there was no concern. Chairperson Schertzing stated that the Board appreciates the transparency and would expect the Land Bank to move forward with what has been outlined in the budget.

We lost our 2 AmeriCorps people, who quit with AmeriCorps, which unfortunately, is bad timing with the growing garden season. It did not have anything to do with the Land Bank, and we received emails confirming and on file. Our Garden Coordinator is under a little stress in trying to keep up. We are hoping to obtain a summer AmeriCorps person, and then may be another 1-2 people starting in fall.

Director Case stated that most of February was a learning month on our financial system in BS&A. Land Bank is completing year end reporting. We are also preparing for our annual audit with the City of Lansing, on March 26<sup>th</sup>, assuming that is still on schedule. It's for CDBG demolitions and HOME projects.

Willow/Walnut has become a Neighborhood of Focus in the City of Lansing. The Land Bank owns 80-90 properties in Tract 68, and we are engaged with this project. Planning to do some extra things, may be some beautification on vacant lots and such.

Chairperson Schertzing and Director Case spoke at an environmental council luncheon about our Incremental Development Alliance program. David Burns stated that we have another meeting session set for April 1<sup>st</sup>, but may need to be rescheduled.

Michael Andrick and Director Case met with some folks from Preservation Lansing, MSU, and Mid-MEAC at a few demolition properties to discuss reuse of materials and salvaging. Always trying to save materials if possible.

Still researching the restrictive deed topic with other Land Banks. Director Case contacted 5 other agencies and Land Banks and have not found any restricted deeds, so far. Commissioner Slaughter suggested that an association that could help with research.

## E. Legal

Tim Perrone spoke about a Land Contract court case scheduled, but since court has been closed for 3 weeks per the Coronavirus, Land Bank will try to present the potential court proposal to the Land Contract Holder to see if they'll accept instead of going to actual court. Trying to start the clock in this process. Commissioner Grebner stated that the Land Bank should not be doing land contracts. Tim Perrone stated that land contracts were set up as a short-term remedy to change into a future mortgage. The Land Bank set up many land contracts years ago as a temporary sales tool. The goal is to get Holders into housing counselling to help them into mortgages. David Burns stated that most of the land contracts are in much better shape than a year ago.

Tim Perrone discussed a law case in Detroit from the Court of Appeals in regards to enforcement of side lot sales. This is a lesson on specific land bank policies.

Commissioner Grebner raised a discussion topic on video conferencing systems, and this may change our future properties and housing needs in the County.

## 3. Adjournment

Chairperson Schertzing adjourned the meeting at 5:39pm.